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Dear Fellow Shareholders,

Though 2020 may have been a year of uncertainty, 2021 was a year of resiliency as our tenacity and client focus
continued to pay off. The Company navigated the challenges of the pandemic and did so in a way that yielded
impressive results and new clients.

The Bank’s few remaining Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) borrowers are working through the forgiveness
process. We recognize that PPP income was an important income driver last year. Net income nearly doubled
year-over-year from $4.3 million at year-end 2020 to $8.3 million as of December 31, 2021. Total assets
increased $340 million in the last two years, the value of which is equivalent to the purchase of a community
bank — yet without the investment expense.

We would like to believe we came through this difficult time because of our culture, the strength of our brand,
and an uncompromising passion as bankers and advisors to our clients and the community as a whole.

On the horizon we see a return to increased loan activity if businesses get more certainty in their workforce and
supply chains settle out. We are hopeful our commercial loan momentum, which started in the last quarter of
2021, will continue into 2022. We are ready for a post-PPP business environment.

We had exceptional mortgage activity in 2021, although we anticipate home mortgages will experience some
headwinds as the year begins and interest rate increases become more likely. Overall the Company is well-
positioned for a rising rate environment.

Finally, we remind you we are approaching the asset milestone of becoming a $1 billion bank. As a fellow
shareholder, we trust you are as excited and proud of this Company and this team as we are.

Other Highlights include:

»  The Board of Directors declared an annual cash dividend of $0.18 per share on the Company’s common
stock at its January, 2022 meeting. This dividend was payable March 1, 2022, to shareholders of record on
February 10, 2022.

*  Net earnings for the year nearly doubled in 2021 to $8.3 million, boosted primarily by PPP activity, a credit
for loan losses, and commercial and residential real estate loan originations.

*  Book value per share of $21.42 increased 10.9% year-over-year.

»  Deposits increased by $182.4 million, or 31.4%, since December 31, 2020.

»  Since March 31, 2020, the Company has recognized over $5.0 million in PPP fee and interest income, net
of costs.

*  Asset quality remained strong with no nonperforming assets, no loans 90 days or more past due, and no
other real estate owned.

We are delighted to present the enclosed 2021 Annual Report.
Warm regards,

R ) oA ithetnr

Sammie D. Dixon, Jr. Richard A. Weidner
Vice Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer Chairman
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HACKER, JOHNSON & SMITH PA

Fort Lauderdale Certified Public Accountants
Orlando
Tampa

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors
Prime Meridian Holding Company
Tallahassee, Florida:

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Prime Meridian Holding Company and
Subsidiary (the "Company"), as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 and the related consolidated statements of
earnings, comprehensive income, stockholders' equity and cash flows for the years then ended and the related notes
(collectively referred to as the "consolidated financial statements"). In our opinion, the consolidated financial
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the
Company at December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for the
years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on the Company's consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We are a public
accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States) ("PCAOB") and
are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and
the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
of material misstatement, whether due to error or fraud, the Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged
to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. As part of our audits, we are required to obtain
an understanding of internal control over financial reporting but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.

Our audits included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such
procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

500 North Westshore Boulevard, Post Office Box 20368, Tampa, Florida 33622-0368, (813) 286-2424
A Registered Public Accounting Firm



To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors
Prime Meridian Holding Company
Page Two

Critical Audit Matters

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the consolidated
financial statements that was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that (i)
relates to accounts or disclosures that are material to the consolidated financial statements and (ii) involved our
especially challenging, subjective, or complex judgments. The communication of critical audit matters does not
alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by
communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate opinion on the critical audit matter or on the
accounts or disclosures to which it relates.

Evaluation of General Reserve Portion of the Allowance for Loan Losses - Evaluation of the Qualitative
Adjustments

As described in Notes 1 and 3 to the consolidated financial statements, management determines the general reserve
portion of the allowance for loan losses using actual historical loss experience for each individual loan category, as
well as evaluating whether qualitative adjustments are necessary. As of December 31, 2021, the allowance for loan
losses was $6.0 million which consists of two components: the allowance for loans individually evaluated for
impairment ("specific reserves") and the allowance for loans collectively evaluated for impairment ("general
reserve"). At December 31, 2021 all of the $6.0 million was included in the general reserves. The general reserve
covers loans that are not individually classified as impaired. In evaluating whether qualitative adjustments are
necessary, management considers (1) changes in lending policies and procedures, risk selection and underwriting
standards, (2) changes in national, regional and local economic conditions that affect the collectability of the loan
portfolio, (3) changes in the experience, ability and depth of lending management and other relevant staff, (4)
changes in the volume and severity of past due loans, nonaccrual loans or loans classified special mention,
substandard, doubtful or loss, (5) quality of loan review, (6) changes in the nature and volume of the loan portfolio
and terms of loans, (7) the existence and effect of any concentrations of credit and changes in the level of such
concentrations, (8) changes in collateral dependent loans, and (9) the effect of other external factors, trends or
uncertainties that could affect management's estimate of probable losses, such as competition and industry
conditions.

The principal considerations for our determination that performing procedures relating to the evaluation of
qualitative adjustments used in the calculation of the general reserve portion of the allowance for loan losses is a
critical audit matter are as follows: Significant judgment used by management when evaluating the qualitative
adjustments, which in turn led to a high degree of auditor judgment, subjectivity, and effort in performing audit
procedures and evaluating audit evidence relating to the qualitative adjustments.

Addressing the matter involved performing procedures and evaluating audit evidence in connection with forming
our overall opinion on the consolidated financial statements. These procedures included among others, testing
management’s process for evaluating qualitative adjustments by (i) evaluating the appropriateness of the
methodology management used in evaluating the qualitative adjustments, (ii) testing the inputs used in the estimate
of qualitative adjustments, including the completeness and accuracy of underlying historical loss data, and (iii)
evaluating the reasonableness of the qualitative adjustments given current microeconomic trends and portfolio
characteristics.

p/

il Whas b ol

HACKER, JOHNSON & SMITH PA

We have served as the Company's auditor since 2008.
Tampa, Florida

March 10, 2022



PRIME MERIDIAN HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Balance Sheets

(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts)
Assets

Cash and due from DAnKS .........c.coooviiiiuiiiiiieee et ettt
Federal funds SOIA ........coviiiuiiieeeece ettt
Interest-bearing AEPOSILS. ......c.ecierieriieieiieiterterte e eee et et b e ebestaesbaebeessessaesaeesseenseenns

Total cash and cash eqUIVAIENLS..........c.ccveriieriiiciiiieceee e
Debt securities available fOr Sale............coviiviiiiiieiiiiieeee e
L0ans Neld fOr SALE .......ccouiiiiuiiiciii ettt e
Loans, net of allowance for loan losses of $5,974 and $6,092 .........c..ccoveeveevevriecneennnnne.
Federal Home Loan Bank StOCK ............cccuieviiiiiiieiiiiciieeiee ettt
Premises and €qUIPMENT, NEL.......c.eecverrierierieeieriesterieete et et e st eeeeeeeseaeseeesseeseeneesenesnes
Right Of USE 1€aSE @SSEL......ccuiieeiieiiieiie et ete ettt ettt et e et e sveeeebeesebeesabeesabeennneenns
DEferred taX @SS .....cocueii et eaneas
Accrued Interest reCeIVADIE .......ocovii i
Bank-owned life INSUTANCE ..........ccviieueiiciie ettt etee et eeeaeeeeaee s
OFNET ASSELS ...ttt ettt e e e e e e et e e e e te e e e eetaee e eeaaeeeeeateeeeearseeeenenes

TOtAl ASSELS ..veeiiiiiiieeiiie ettt ettt e ettt e et e e et e e et e e e e et e e e e etae e e eeareaeeenaes

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Liabilities:

Noninterest-bearing demand dePOSILS........c..ccverrierrieriieiieiieieerie ettt seeens
Savings, NOW and money-market deposits ...........ceeveeierrierieerieeieiieseesreeve v
TIME AEPOSIES .veevveeeieieieiiieiteeste ettt et e et et et e eteebesaeesteesaeesbeessesssesseesseesseensenssenssenseens

TOtAl AEPOSIES ...viveieeiciietiete ettt ettt ettt et et ettt b e b e eabeetbeetaeste e beesbeenseennas

Other DOTTOWIINIES ...vveuvieiieieiie ettt ettt tte st ebe e b e esbestaesseesseesseesseesaesssesseensaensenns
OffiCial CRECKS ..uvieiieiecie e ettt et nse e s
Operating 1€ase Hability ........cccccverierieriieie et
L0 03T V21 031 14 TP

TOtal HADILIEIES ..evveeeeeeieiieii ettt ettt ettt e et e st e seenseenseennes

Commitments and contingencies (notes 8, 15 and 20)
Stockholders' equity:

Preferred stock, undesignated; 1,000,000 shares authorized, none issued or

OULSTANAING ...ttt ettt et e et teebe e b e easeetseetaesteestaesbeenseennas

Common stock, $.01 par value; 9,000,000 shares authorized, 3,129,046 and

3,119,471 issued and outsStanding ............ceecveeveriereenieeiieeie e seesre e e seeeeeens
Additional paid-in CaPItAl .........cceevieeeiiiieiiereee e
Retained Carnings.........ccvvervieeiiiieiieriiesiieie e eteete st e e ebeesbessaesseesreesseesseenseesseessenseens
Accumulated other comprehensive (10SS) INCOME ........ccecvvervieciieierieriieieeie e

Total StoCKhOIAErS' €QUILY ...eevvieeieeeieiieieeie ettt

Total liabilities and stockholders' eqUItY ..........ccevveriieciieiierieneeieee e

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31,

2021 2020
8,897 5,008
53,969 22,561
170,607 41,416
233,473 68,985
73,763 61,879
11,768 13,593
490,198 476,661
366 493
7,962 8,248
3,258 3,466
843 394
1,505 1,960
16,153 10,685
1,834 930
841,123 647,294
209,351 162,013
503,759 362,147
49,832 56,432
762,942 580,592
3,575 -
1,141 1,109
3,397 3,580
3,037 1,758
774,092 587,039
31 31
38,909 38,568
28,164 20,255
(73) 1,401
67,031 60,255
841,123 $ 647,294




PRIME MERIDIAN HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Earnings

Year Ended December 31,
(in thousands, except per share amounts) 2021 2020
Interest income:
LLOAINS ettt et et ettt ettt e et e et et e et e e e e et eeaeeeneeane $ 23,050 $ 19,915
SECUITLIES ..o ieeiiee ettt ettt e e et e e e et e e e et et e e eaaeeeseaaeeesestaeessnteeesenaeeesanneeeean 1,086 1,394
ORET ettt e et e et e et et e et e e eteeeeateeeteeeeareenn 268 375
Total INTEIEST INCOIME .......vvviiiieieieeeeeeee ettt ettt e e e ee e e e eae e e e eaaeesenaeeesenaeeeeas 24,404 21,684
Interest expense:
DIEPOSIES .vveuvieeiieiieeiecite sttt et et et e st e st e et e e sbesaeesse e beesbeeseeesaeete e beenbaesbeesaesraesbeenseenaeenes 2,022 2,973
Other DOITOWINZS ...veivvieiiiceiiceeecie ettt ettt e e st steebeesbeereesaeesteesbeeabeessessnesseennas 58 31
TOtal INTETEST EXPEIISC. .. uveeeerieiiieeiieiieeeieesree et e sbeeeteesbeessseessbeessseessseessseesssaenseeens 2,080 3,004
NEL INTETEST INCOITIE ....vvveeeieiiiee e eeeeee et ee et e e et e e e et e e e e e e e saaeeeseneeeesennneessnneess 22,324 18,680
(Credit) provision for 10an 1OSSES ..........ccvevuieeiiiiiiieitieie ettt eene s (104) 2,850
Net interest income after (credit) provision for loan 10sses...........ccccvvevveevieereennennen. 22,428 15,830
Noninterest income:
Service charges and fees on deposit ACCOUNLS...........coveevvieiieieriieriieie e 245 213
Debit card/ATM FEVENUE, TET ......vuveeieereieieieeee ettt eeeee e e et e e enaeeeeeaeeesennaeeeas 470 352
Mortgage banking reVENUE, NEL ..........cceevverrrereereeieieeseereesteeeeeeesreesseesseesessaesseesses 1,174 855
Income from bank-owned life INSUTANCE ...........cceevveeeiiiiiieciiecieece e 271 184
Gain on sale of debt securities available for sale..........c...cceeveviiiiiieniiiiieeceeceee 108 -
OtNET INCOMIE ...ttt ettt et et e e st eeetbe e s tveesabeesebeesaseeseseesaseesaseesaseenes 238 278
Total NONINTETESt INCOIME .........uvveeeeereeeeetreeeeetreeeeeteeeeete e eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaeeseenreeeeeneeeeens 2,506 1,882
Noninterest expense:
Salaries and employee DENefits........ccvevvireiirierierieii e 8,093 6,786
OccupanCy and SQUIPITIENL . .........ceieruiereeieeieeieeeeesteeteeeeeeee st e et ebeeeeseeesneesreesseeneeenes 1,546 1,474
Professional fEES ..........oooviiiieeee e 483 364
AVEITISIIE ...ttt ettt ettt e sttt et eest e s et e e bt et e eseesseesneeneenseennesneenns 707 541
FDIC ASSESSIMEINL .....vviiieiiiieeiiiiee et ettt eett e e et e e et e e e eetae e e eeaaeeeeeaaeeeeetaeeeenneaas 316 231
Software maintenance, amortization and Other............ooccvviiviieiiiiiiieeee e 975 825
ORET e et e e ettt e e et e et e et e e et e et e e etreeeaeeenn 1,950 1,738
Total NONINTETESt EXPEIISE....veevvieerierreereerreeteereerestresteesseeseeseeseesseesseeseessesssesseesseens 14,070 11,959
Earnings before iNCOME tAXES ......ccvvevueeriieiieieieieereeie et ere et esieesre e eeeeeeesreesaeenseens 10,864 5,753
TNCOIME TAXES. ..oiiiiiieieiieee et e e e e ettt e e e e e e et e e e e e e e eentaareeeeeesennaanees 2,517 1,295
NEL AIMIINES ©..vveveeeeeeteeteeeete et te et et et et et ete et e e ete et eseese et e s eseetesseseesenseseesenseseesenseseaes $ 8,347 $ 4,458
Earnings per common share:
BASIC .ttt ettt ettt en et et et eaeeaeen e et ennetenan $ 2.67 $ 1.42
DAIULEA ..t e ettt e et e e et e et e e aeeeteeeteeeteeereeenneeans $ 2.66 $ 1.42

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements



PRIME MERIDIAN HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

Year Ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2021 2020
NEL CAITUIIES .....veveeeeeeeeeeeeete ettt et et e et e et e eteeteesee e et e eteeteeseeseeseeeenseeseaseeseeseeseeneensenea $ 8,347 $ 4,458
Other comprehensive (loss) income:
Change in unrealized (loss) gain on debt securities available for sale:
Unrealized (loss) gain arising during the year...........c.ccccoovvevievieiiiienieieeieeeeiens (1,867) 1,609
Reclassification adjustment for realized gain.............cocveeveeievierieneeie e (108) -
Net change in unrealized (10SS) ZAIN......ccccoiervieriieiiiieieeie et (1,975) 1,609
Deferred INCOME tAXES.....ccviievieiieieeiesierie e cte et e st e st ebe s e eteesteesseesbeessessaessaesseesseenseenns 501 (408)
Total other comprehensive (10SS) INCOME..........covievuieciiiiiiieieereere et (1,474) 1,201
COMPIENENSIVE INCOIME .....vveeviieeieteeieeeete ettt ettt ettt e te et ae e e eseeteeneaeas $ 6,873 $ 5,659

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



PRIME MERIDIAN HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equity

Years Ended December 31, 2021 and 2020

Accumulated
Other
Compre-
Additional hensive Total
Common Stock Paid-in Retained Income Stockholders'
Shares Amount Capital Earnings (Loss) Equity

(dollars in thousands)
Balance at December 31, 2019..... 3,191,288 $ 32 § 39456 $§ 16,180 $ 200 $ 55,868
Net earnings ........ccceeeveveerveenennen. - - - 4,458 - 4,458
Dividends paid..........cccceeeueveeinnns - - - (383) - (383)
Net change in unrealized gain on

debt securities available for

sale, net of income taxes of

$408 ..o - - - - 1,201 1,201
Stock options exercised................ 2,200 - 27 - - 27
Common stock retirement ............ (82,784) (1 (1,216) - - (1,217)
Common stock issued as

compensation to directors......... 4,932 - 93 - - 93
Issuance of restricted stock........... 3,835 - - - - -
Stock-based compensation ........... - - 208 - - 208
Balance at December 31, 2020..... 3,119471 § 31 § 38,568 $§ 20,255 1,401 $ 60,255
Net €arnings ..........oceeveveeveveennnns -3 - $ -3 8,347 -3 8,347
Dividends paid.........ccceeeveevernrennen. - - - (438) - (438)
Net change in unrealized loss on

debt securities available for

sale, net of income tax benefit

Of 8501 oo, - - - - (1,474) (1,474)
Stock options exercised................ 150 - 3 - - 3
Common stock issued as

compensation to directors......... 5,344 - 111 - - 111
Issuance of restricted stock........... 4,081 - - - - -
Stock-based compensation ........... - - 227 - - 227
Balance at December 31, 2021 ..... 3,129,046 $ 31 $§ 38909 § 28,164 (73) $ 67,031

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.



PRIME MERIDIAN HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities:
NEL CAIMINES ©..vveveeeeeeteeeeeeete ettt et et et et ete et eaeeteeseseeseete s eseetesseseesenseseesenseseesenseseaes $ 8,347 $ 4,458
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortiZation ............cc.eeeveeeereerreenreeeeeeeeeesreesreereeneeneseeesnes 678 659
Provision (credit) for 10an L0SSES.........ccvevviriiiierienieieeie e (104) 2,850
Net amortization of deferred loan fees.........c.ocevverieriieciieciciecceee e (2,564) (670)
Deferred iNCOME tAXES ....vevvieriieiieieeiesterit ettt ettt ereseeseeesseeneeenseenes 52 (440)
Gain on sale of debt securities available for sale ..........cccceevvveerievienieeee (108) -
Amortization of premiums and discounts on debt securities available for sale 323 386
Gain on sale of loans held for sale ........ccccooiiieiciiiiiiicieeee e, (1,174) (855)
Proceeds from the sale of loans held for sale ...........cccoovvvvveiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiees 189,095 153,799
Loans originated as held for sale............coccoeiiiiiriiiiineeee e (186,096) (160,344)
Stock issued as COMPENSALION .........eecveerreerrieeiierieereesteereeeeeeree e ereereeeeeereesseens 111 93
Stock-based COMPENSAtION EXPENSE ......cuverreerreereerieereireesreereeaeereesreesseeseesneens 227 208
Income from bank-owned life INSUrANCe.........cceeeveeeerierienieiecie e (271) (184)
Net decrease (increase) in accrued interest receivable.........cvevvveeevvereenneennenne. 455 (823)
Net change in 0perating [CaseS.........ccvevvieriieiieierienrieieereere e e esreeaeeneseneeeas 25 25
Net increase in Other aSSELS ......c.vevvieeieiieiieiieie ettt (904) (204)
Net increase in other liabilities and official checks............cccceevviviiiicieeeiinnnne. 1,311 1,150
Net cash provided by operating actiVities..........cceeeveriereeerierceereereeennene 9,403 108
Cash flows from investing activities:
Loan originations, net of principal repayments............cceceeeveeceereereeereesieesnenne (10,869) (141,131)
Purchase of debt securities available for sale...........ccocveeiecieiienienieieee, (37,854) (20,333)
Principal repayments of debt securities available for sale.........c..c.ccecevceenennnne. 14,687 16,883
Proceeds from the sale of debt securities available for sale .............................. 5,874 -
Maturities and calls of debt securities available for sale............coeeevveviieiiiiinnn. 3,219 4,127
Repurchase (purchase) of Federal Home Loan Bank stock ...........ccccceevveenennen. 127 (89)
Purchase of bank-owned life INSUrance............cceeveevereeieenieciecieceeseeeie e (5,197) (4,000)
Purchase of premises and eqUIPMENt ...........c.ccvevieiieeerienieeieere e (392) (1,163)
Net cash used in INvesting activities.........ccvevveevereerreerieereieeseesie e, (30,405) (145,706)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net INCIrease N dePOSILS...ccvierrierieeriierieerieerteeeeereeteeesreereesteeebeeseseesareens 182,350 142,328
Net change in other DOITOWINGS .......c.cocvevieriieriieiieieeeeeeee e 3,575 (1,254)
Proceeds from stock options €XerciSed ...........ccvevviecvieierieneenieeieneeseeseeie e 3 27
Common StOCK TEHICMENT .......cceevveeiieieiieieerieeie ettt sre e eebeeeeseeeseee e - (1,217)
Common stock dividends paid..........ccccceveeerienierieieeieeeeee e (438) (383)
Net cash provided by financing activities..........cceeeververeerierieereererennne 185,490 139,501
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents............ccceeceeviereeneeniencie e, 164,488 (6,097)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of Year.........ccccevveveieeierienieeee e 68,985 75,082
Cash and cash equivalents at end Of YEar ........c.ccveviiriieicierieiee e $ 233,473 $ 68,985
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Cash paid during the year for:
TIIEETEST .ottt ettt ettt et e et et e e et et e eae e e e eneens $ 2,085 $ 3,044
TNCOME TAXES ...vvevvieeeteeeceeete ettt ettt et e et s ese et e e e ete s essese s eseeae s easeseeseneans $ 2323 $ 1,640
Noncash transactions:
Accumulated other comprehensive income, net change in unrealized gain on
debt securities available for sale, net of tax benefit.........cccooveeveeveceeveeennne. $ (1,474) $ 1,201
Right of use lease assets obtained in exchange for operating lease liabilities... $ - 8 -

See Accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements



PRIME MERIDIAN HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
At December 31, 2021 and 2020 and for the Years Then Ended
(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization. Prime Meridian Holding Company (“PMHG”) owns 100% of the outstanding common stock of Prime
Meridian Bank (the "Bank") (collectively the "Company"). PMHG’s primary activity is the operation of the Bank. The Bank
is a Florida state-chartered commercial bank. The deposit accounts of the Bank are insured up to the applicable limits by the
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC"). The Bank offers a variety of community banking services to individual and
corporate clients through its four banking offices located in Tallahassee, Crawfordville, and Lakeland, Florida and its online
banking platform.

The following is a description of the significant accounting policies and practices followed by the Company, which conform
to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP") and prevailing practices within the
banking industry.

Use of Estimates. In preparing consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP, management is required to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the consolidated balance
sheet and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. A material estimate that is particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term relates to the determination
of the allowance for loan losses.

Principles of Consolidation. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of PMHG and the Bank. All
significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include
cash and balances due from banks, federal funds sold and interest-bearing deposits in banks, all of which have original
maturities of less than ninety days.

On March 12,2021, the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System adopted as a final rule, without change, its March
24, 2020 interim rule amending its Regulation D (reserve Requirements of Depository Institutions) to lower reserve
requirement ratios on transaction accounts maintained at depository institutions to zero percent.

Debt Securities. Debt securities may be classified as either trading, held-to-maturity or available-for-sale. Trading debt
securities are held principally for resale and recorded at their fair values. Unrealized gains and losses on trading debt securities
are included immediately in earnings. Held-to-maturity debt securities are those which the Company has the positive intent
and ability to hold to maturity and are reported at amortized cost. Debt securities available-for-sale consist of securities not
classified as trading debt securities or as held-to-maturity debt securities. Unrealized holding gains and losses on debt
securities available-for-sale are excluded from earnings and reported in accumulated other comprehensive income. Gains and
losses on the sale of debt securities available-for-sale are recorded on the trade date determined using the specific-
identification method. Premiums and discounts on debt securities available for sale are recognized in interest income using
the interest method over the period to maturity or call date, if applicable.

Management evaluates debt securities for other-than-temporary impairment at least on a quarterly basis, and more frequently
when economic or market concerns warrant such evaluation. Consideration is given to (1) the length of time and the extent
to which the fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition and near-term prospects of the issuer, and (3) the
intent and ability of the Company to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any
anticipated recovery in fair value.
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Loans Held for Sale. Loans held for sale includes mortgage loans which are intended for sale in the secondary market and
are carried at the lower of book value or estimated fair value in the aggregate. For the years ended December 31, 2021 and
2020, gains on loans held for sale are reported on the consolidated statements of earnings under noninterest income in
mortgage banking revenue. At December 31, 2021, loans held for sale were $11,768,000 compared to $13,593,000 at
December 31, 2020. At December 31, 2021 and 2020, fair values exceeded book values in the aggregate.

Loans. Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future or until maturity or pay-off are
reported at their outstanding principal adjusted for any charge-offs, the allowance for loan losses, and any deferred fees or
costs.

Commitment and loan origination fees are deferred and certain direct origination costs are capitalized. Both are recognized
as an adjustment of the yield of the related loan.

The accrual of interest on all portfolio classes is discontinued at the time the loan is ninety-days delinquent unless the loan is
well collateralized and in the process of collection. In all cases, loans are placed on nonaccrual or charged off at an earlier
date if collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful. All interest accrued but not collected for loans that are placed
on nonaccrual or loans that are charged off is reversed against interest income. The interest on these loans is accounted for
on the cash-basis or cost-recovery method, until qualifying for return to accrual. Loans are returned to accrual status when
all of the principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future payments are reasonably assured.

Allowance for Loan Losses. The allowance for loan losses is established as losses are estimated to have occurred through a
provision for loan losses charged to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management confirms that
a loan balance cannot be collected. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance. There were no changes in
the Company's accounting policies or methodology during the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020.

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon management's periodic review
of the collectability of the loans in light of historical experience, the nature and volume of the loan portfolio, adverse situations
that may affect the borrower's ability to repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral and prevailing economic
conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more
information becomes available.

The allowance consists of specific and general components. The specific component relates to loans that are considered
impaired. For such loans, an allowance is established when the discounted cash flows or collateral value of the impaired loan
is lower than the carrying value of that loan.

The general component covers all other loans and is based on the following factors. The historical loss component of the
allowance is determined by losses recognized by portfolio segment over the preceding thirty-six months. This is supplemented
by the risks for each portfolio segment. Risk factors impacting loans in each of the portfolio segments include any
deterioration of property values, reduced consumer and business spending as a result of unemployment and reduced credit
availability, and a lack of confidence in the economy. The historical experience is adjusted for the following qualitative
factors: (1) changes in lending policies and procedures, risk selection and underwriting standards; (2) changes in national,
regional and local economic conditions that affect the collectability of the loan portfolio; (3) changes in the experience, ability
and depth of lending management and other relevant staff; (4) changes in the volume and severity of past due loans,
nonaccrual loans or loans classified special mention, substandard, doubtful or loss; (5) quality of loan review; (6) changes in
the nature and volume of the loan portfolio and terms of loans; (7) the existence and effect of any concentrations of credit
and changes in the level of such concentrations; (8) changes in collateral dependent loans; and (9) the effect of other external
factors, trends or uncertainties that could affect management’s estimate of probable losses, such as competition and industry
conditions.

(continued)
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Allowance for Loan Losses, Continued. A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is
probable that the Company will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to
the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment
status, collateral value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that
experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Management
determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration all
of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the
borrower's prior payment record, and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. Impairment is
measured on a loan-by-loan basis for all loans by either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the
loan's effective interest rate or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral-dependent.

Premises and Equipment. Land is stated at cost. Buildings, leasehold improvements, furniture, fixtures and equipment,
computer and software are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortization
expense are computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of each type of asset, or the lease term if
shorter.

Bank-Owned Life Insurance (BOLI). The Company has purchased life insurance policies on certain key officers. Bank-
owned life insurance is recorded at the amount that can be realized under the insurance contract at the consolidated balance
sheet date, which is the cash surrender value adjusted for other charges or other amount due that are probable at settlement.

Transfer of Financial Assets. Transfers of financial assets or a participating interest in an entire financial asset are accounted
for as sales, when control over the assets has been surrendered. Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered
when (1) the assets have been isolated from the Company, (2) the transferee obtains the right (free of conditions that constrain
it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and (3) the Company does not maintain
effective control over the transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity. A participating
interest is a portion of an entire financial asset that (1) conveys proportionate ownership rights with equal priority to each
participating interest holder (2) involves no recourse (other than standard representations and warranties) to, or subordination
by, any participating interest holder, and (3) does not entitle any participating interest holder to receive cash before any other
participating interest holder.

Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments. In the ordinary course of business, the Company has entered into off-balance-
sheet financial instruments consisting of commitments to extend credit, construction loans in process, unused lines of credit,
standby financial and performance letters of credit and guaranteed accounts. Such financial instruments are recorded in the
consolidated financial statements when they are funded.

Revenue from Contracts with Customers. In addition to lending and related activities, the Company offers various services
to customers that generate revenue, certain of which are governed by ASC Topic 606 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(“ASC 606”). The Company’s services that fall within the scope of ASC 606 are presented within noninterest income and
include service charges and fees on deposit accounts and debit card/ATM revenue, net. Revenue is recognized upon
satisfaction of our performance obligation when the transactions occur or as services are performed over primarily monthly
or quarterly periods. Payment is typically received in the period the transactions occur.

Debit Card/ATM Revenue. Debit card/ATM revenue primarily includes interchange income from client use of consumer and
business debit cards. Interchange income is paid by a merchant bank to the card-issuing bank through the interchange network.
Interchange fees are set by the credit card associations and based on cardholder purchase volumes. Also included in Debit
card/ATM revenue is ATM foreign fee income and ATM non-client ACH credits. This revenue line is shown net of debit
card fees and ATM program expenses.
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Income Taxes. There are two components of income tax expense: current and deferred. Current income tax expense reflects
taxes to be paid or refunded for the current period by applying the provisions of the enacted tax law to the taxable income or
excess of deductions over revenues. The Company determines deferred income taxes using the liability (or balance sheet)
method. Under this method, the net deferred tax asset or liability is based on the tax effects of the differences between the
book and tax bases of assets and liabilities, and enacted changes in tax rates and laws are recognized in the period in which
they occur. Deferred income tax expense results from changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities between periods.

Deferred tax assets are recognized if it is more likely than not, based on the technical merits, that the tax position will be
realized or sustained upon examination. The term “more likely than not” means a likelihood of more than 50 percent; the
terms examined and upon examination also include resolution of the related appeals or litigation processes, if any.

A tax position that meets the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold is initially and subsequently measured as the largest
amount of tax benefit that has a greater than 50 percent likelihood of being realized upon settlement with a taxing authority
that has full knowledge of all relevant information. The determination of whether or not a tax position has met the more-
likely-than-not recognition threshold considers the facts, circumstances, and information available at the reporting date and
is subject to management's judgment. As of December 31, 2021, management is not aware of any uncertain tax positions that
would have a material effect on the Company's consolidated financial statements. Deferred tax assets are reduced by a
valuation allowance if, based on the weight of evidence available, it is more likely than not that some portion or all of a
deferred tax asset will not be realized.

The Company recognizes interest and penalties on income taxes as a component of income tax expense.

The Company files consolidated income tax returns. Income taxes are allocated to the Holding Company and Bank as if
separate income tax returns were filed.

Fair Value Measurements. Fair value is the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability
(an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants on the measurement date. GAAP has established a fair value hierarchy which requires an entity to maximize the
use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value. The hierarchy describes
three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair value:

Level 1: Observable inputs such as quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These include
quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities that
are not active; and model-driven valuations whose inputs are observable or whose significant value drivers are observable.
Valuations may be obtained from, or corroborated by, third-party pricing services.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs to measure fair value of assets and liabilities for which there is little, if any market activity at
the measurement date, using reasonable inputs and assumptions based upon the best information at the time, to the extent that
inputs are available without undue cost and effort.

The following describes valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value:

Debt Securities Available for Sale. Where quoted prices are available in an active market, securities are classified within
Level 1 of the valuation hierarchy. Level 1 securities include highly liquid government bonds, certain mortgage products and
exchange-traded equities. If quoted market prices are not available, then fair values are estimated by using pricing models,
quoted prices of securities with similar characteristics, or discounted cash flows. Examples of such instruments, which would
generally be classified within Level 2 of the valuation hierarchy, include U.S. Government agency securities, municipal
securities, mortgage-backed securities, and asset-backed securities. In certain cases where there is limited activity or less
transparency around inputs to the valuation, securities are classified within Level 3 of the valuation hierarchy.
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Impaired Loans. Estimates of fair value for impaired loans is based on the estimated value of the underlying collateral which
is determined based on a variety of information, including the use of available appraisals, estimates of market value by
licensed appraisers or local real estate brokers and the knowledge and experience of the Bank’s management related to values
of equipment or properties in the Bank’s market areas. Management takes into consideration the type, location or occupancy
of the equipment or property as well as current economic conditions in the area the property is located in assessing estimates
of fair value. Accordingly, fair value estimates for impaired loans are classified as Level 3.

Derivatives: The fair values of derivatives are based on valuation models using observable market data as of the measurement
date (Level 2). Quoted market prices are not always available for our derivatives. Therefore, the fair values of derivatives are
determined using quantitative models that utilize multiple market inputs. The inputs will vary based on the type of derivative,
but could include interest rates, prices and indices to generate continuous yield or pricing curves, prepayment rates, and
volatility factors to value the position. The majority of market inputs are actively quoted and can be validated through external
sources, including brokers, market transactions and third-party pricing services.

Fair Values of Financial Instruments. The following methods and assumptions were used by the Company in estimating
fair values of financial instruments:

Cash and Cash Equivalents. The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximate their fair value (Level 1).
Debt Securities. Fair values for debt securities are based on the framework for measuring fair value (Level 2).

Loans Held for Sale. Fair values of loans held for sale are based on commitments on hand from investors or prevailing market
prices. Fair values are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses using interest rates currently being offered for loans
with similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality (Level 3).

Loans. Fair values for variable rate loans, fixed-rate mortgage loans (e.g., one-to-four family residential), commercial real
estate loans and commercial loans are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses, using interest rates currently being
offered for loans with similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality. Fair values for nonperforming loans are estimated
using discounted cash flow analysis or underlying collateral values, where applicable (Level 3).

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock. The fair value of the Company's investment in Federal Home Loan Bank stock is based on
its redemption value (Level 3).

Accrued Interest Receivable. The carrying amounts of accrued interest approximate their fair values (Level 3).

Deposits. The fair values disclosed for demand, NOW, money-market and savings deposits are, by definition, equal to the
amount payable on demand at the reporting date (that is, their carrying amounts). Fair values for fixed-rate time deposits are
estimated using a discounted cash flow calculation that applies interest rates currently being offered on time deposits to a
schedule of aggregated expected monthly maturities of time deposits (Level 3).

Other borrowings. The fair value of other borrowings approximates carrying value due to their short-term maturity (Level
3).

Derivatives. Fair value of the Company’ s derivative contracts are based on the framework for measuring fair value (Level
2).

Off-Balance Sheet Instruments. Fair values for off-balance sheet lending commitments are based on fees currently charged
to enter into similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the counterparties' credit
standing (Level 3).

(continued)
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Adbvertising. The Company expenses all media advertising as incurred.

Stock-Based Compensation. The Company expenses the fair value of any stock options granted. The Company recognizes
stock option compensation in the consolidated statements of earnings as the options vest. The market price of the Company's
common stock at the date of the grant is used for restricted stock awards. For stock purchase plans, the Black-Scholes model
is utilized to estimate the fair value of the award. The impact of forfeitures of share-based awards on compensation expense
is recognized as forfeitures occur.

Comprehensive Income. GAAP requires that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses be included in earnings.
Although certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale debt securities,
are reported as a separate component of the equity section of the consolidated balance sheets, such items, along with net
earnings, are components of comprehensive income.

Derivatives. The Company enters into interest rate swaps in order to provide commercial loan clients the ability to swap from
variable to fixed interest rates. Under these agreements, the Company enters into a variable-rate loan with a client in addition
to a swap agreement. This swap agreement effectively converts the client’s variable rate loan into a fixed rate. The Company
then enters into a matching swap agreement with a third-party dealer in order to offset its exposure on the client swap. The
Company does not use derivatives for trading purposes. The derivative transactions are considered instruments with no
hedging designation, otherwise known as stand-alone derivatives.

Mortgage Banking Revenue. Mortgage banking revenue includes gains and losses on the sale of mortgage loans originated
for sale, net of direct origination costs, and wholesale brokerage fees. The Company recognizes mortgage banking revenue
from mortgage loans originated in the consolidated statements of earnings upon sale of the loans.

Recent Accounting Standards Update.

In June 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") issued Accounting Standards Update ("ASU") 2016-13,
Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326). The ASU requires the Company to measure all expected credit losses for
financial assets held at the reporting date based on historical experience, current conditions, and reasonable and supportable
forecasts. Many of the loss estimation techniques applied today will still be permitted, although the inputs to those techniques
will change to reflect the full amount of expected credit losses. The Company will continue to use judgement to determine
which loss estimation method is appropriate for their circumstances. The ASU requires enhanced disclosures to help investors
and other consolidated financial statement users better understand significant estimates and judgments used in estimating
credit losses, as well as the credit quality and underwriting standards of an organization's portfolio. These disclosures include
qualitative and quantitative requirements that provide additional information about the amount recorded in the consolidated
financial statements. Additionally, the ASU amends the accounting for credit losses on debt securities available-for-sale and
purchased financial assets with credit deterioration. The ASU will take effect for fiscal years, and for interim periods within
fiscal years, beginning after December 15, 2022 (as amended). Early adoption is permitted. The Company is in the process
of determining the effect of the ASU on its consolidated financial statements.

(continued)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

(2) Debt Securities Available for Sale

Debt securities have been classified according to management's intention. The carrying amount of debt securities available

for sale

Debt securities available for sale measured at fair value on a recurring basis are summarized below:

and their fair values are summarized as follows:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
(in thousands)
At December 31, 2021
U.S. Government agency securities.......... $ 2933 §$ -8 14) § 2,919
Municipal SeCUrities..........ccerverrrerreevennnnns 17,721 288 (240) 17,769
Mortgage-backed securities ...................... 48,614 379 (528) 48,465
Asset-backed securities............cceevvervrennne 4,592 25 (7 4,610
Total...ooieiiieiee e $§ 73,800 $ 692 $ (789) § 73,763
At December 31, 2020
U.S. Government agency securities.......... $ 170 $ 2 $ - $ 172
Municipal SECUrities.........cceevreervereerreennenns 15,500 626 - 16,126
Mortgage-backed securities...................... 39,151 1,300 (13) 40,438
Asset-backed securities............ccoveeeennnn.. 5,180 9 (46) 5,143
Total...cooeeieiiic $§ 60,001 $ 1,937 § 59 $ 61,879

Fair Value Measurements Using

Quoted
Prices
In Active
Markets  Significant
for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Fair Assets Inputs Inputs
Value (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
(in thousands)
At December 31, 2021
U.S. Government agency SECUrities ........oovevevvererivvereerirerenne $ 2919 $ $ 2919 $ -
MUnicipal SECUITHIES ... .cuvirerereierrieiieriereete st ese e eee e ens 17,769 17,769 -
Mortgage-backed SECUTIIES ........ccvreveeieriieiieieeiereeie e 48,465 48,465 -
Asset-backed SECUTTHIES.........covveeeeerreeeeeee e 4,610 4,610 -
TOtal. ..o $ 73,763 $ $§ 73,763 $ -
At December 31, 2020
U.S. Government agency SECUrities ........ovvevevvererivvereerirerennne $ 172 3 $ 172 $ -
MuUnicipal SECUTTHIES ... .cvrevrereierrieiieiiete et este e eeee e ens 16,126 16,126 -
Mortgage-backed SECUTILIES .....ecvveveerverieeieriieie e 40,438 40,438 -
Asset-backed SECUTTLIES.........ccvveeeeerreeeeeee e 5,143 5,143 -
TOtal e $ 61,879 3 $§ 61,879 § -
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

Debt Securities Available for Sale, Continued

The scheduled maturities of debt securities available for sale are as follows:

(in thousands)

At December 31, 2021
Due in less than one year............cccoovevueeneennenne.
Due in one to five years.......cccecveevveeceeecreeennenne
Due in five to ten years ........ccccceeevveeceeeiveeennennn
Due after ten years........ccocveveeeiercieneeneerie e
Mortgage-backed securities..........ccoevververrrennnns

The following summarizes sales of debt securities available for sale:

(in thousands)

Proceeds from sale of securities............ccoecvereeennen.
GIOSS ZAIMNS....eevieerieerieeieerieteeteereereseeesreesseeseennes
GIOSS LOSSES .veevvieeieeeieeiieiieie ettt
Net gain on sale of securities ..........cccoeeereerveennenne.

Amortized Fair
Cost Value
19 $ 19
322 341
15,961 15,946
8,944 8,992
48,614 48,465
73,860 $ 73,763
Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020
5,874 $ -
108 -
108 § -

At December 31, 2021 and 2020, debt securities available for sale with a fair value of $11,926,000 and $13,898,000,
respectively, were pledged as collateral for public deposits and for other borrowings with clients.

Debt securities available for sale with unrealized losses aggregated by investment category and length of time that individual
securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, are as follows:

Less Than Twelve Months  More Than Twelve Months
Gross Gross
Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair
Losses Value Losses Value
(in thousands)
At December 31, 2021
Debt Securities Available for Sale
U.S. Government Agencies............. $ (14) $ 2919 § - S -
Municipal securities ............ceenn..... (240) 8,429 - -
Mortgage-backed securities ............ (528) 28,207 - -
Asset-backed securities.................... - - (@) 1,430
Total .....oooveeieieieeee e $ (782) $ 39,555 $ (7 3 1,430
At December 31, 2020
Debt Securities Available for Sale
Mortgage-backed securities ............ $ 6 $ 992 $ ® $ 767
Asset-backed securities.................... - - (46) 3,494
Total..ooeiveeeeeeeeee e $ (5) $ 992 § (54) $ 4,261
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

?2) Debt Securities Available for Sale, Continued

The unrealized losses on twenty-six and seven debt securities available for sale at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively,
were caused by market conditions. It is expected that the securities would not be settled at a price less than the par value of
the investments. Because the decline in fair value is attributable to market conditions and not credit quality, and because the
Company has the ability and intent to hold these investments until a market price recovery or maturity, these investments are
not considered other-than-temporarily impaired.

A3) Loans

The segments and classes of loans are as follows:

At December 31,
(in thousands) 2021 2020
Real estate mortgage loans:
Commercial........cccoocevvveeiieeiieiieeeeeene $ 156,306 $ 133,473
Residential and home equity.................... 183,536 158,120
CONSIUCHION. ...evvveeeieeeeeeeeeeeee e 71,164 44,466
Total real estate mortgage loans........... 411,006 336,059
Commercial 10ans...........ccoeevevveeieeeiiine e, 78,584 141,542
Consumer and other loans ............ccccoveeennn. 7,283 6,312
Total loans.......cccceeevvvvvvneeeeieeiieiineeee. 496,873 483,913
Add (Less):
Net deferred loan (fees) costs .................. (701) (1,160)
Allowance for loan losses...........cccceenenne (5,974) (6,092)
L0ans, NEt....cc.ooveeeeeeiiiiiee e $ 490,198 $ 476,661

The Company has divided the loan portfolio into three portfolio segments and five portfolio classes, each with different risk
characteristics and methodologies for assessing risk. All loans are underwritten based upon standards set forth in the policies
approved by the Company’s Board of Directors. The portfolio segments and classes are identified by the Company as follows:

Real Estate Mortgage Loans. Real estate mortgage loans are typically divided into three classes: commercial,
residential and home equity, and construction. The real estate mortgage loans are as follows:

Commercial. Loans of this type are typically our more complex loans. This category of real estate loans is
comprised of loans secured by mortgages on commercial property that are typically owner-occupied, but also
includes nonowner-occupied investment properties. Commercial loans that are secured by owner-occupied
commercial real estate are repaid through operating cash flow of the borrower. The maturity for this type of
loan is generally limited to three to five years; however, payments may be structured on a longer amortization
basis. Typically, interest rates on our commercial real estate loans are fixed for five years or less after which
they adjust based upon a predetermined spread over an index. At times, a rate may be fixed for longer than five
years. As part of our credit underwriting standards, the Company typically requires personal guarantees from
the principal owners of the business supported by a review of the principal owners’ personal financial
statements and tax returns. As part of the enterprise risk management process, it is understood that risks
associated with commercial real estate loans include fluctuations in real estate values, the overall strength of
the borrower, the overall strength of the economy, new job creation trends, tenant vacancy rates, environmental
contamination, and the quality of the borrowers’ management. In order to mitigate and limit these risks, we
analyze the borrowers’ cash flow and evaluate collateral value. Currently, the collateral securing our
commercial real estate loans includes a variety of property types, such as office, warechouse, and retail facilities.
Other types include multifamily properties, hotels, mixed-use residential, and commercial properties.
Generally, commercial real estate loans present a higher risk profile than our consumer real estate loan portfolio.

(continued)
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued

Loans, Continued

Residential and Home Equity. The Company offers first and second one-to-four family mortgage loans,
multifamily residential loans, and home equity lines of credit. The collateral for these loans is generally on the
clients’ owner-occupied residences. Although these types of loans present lower levels of risk than commercial
real estate loans, risks do still exist because of possible fluctuations in the value of the real estate collateral
securing the loan, as well as changes in the borrowers’ financial condition. The nonowner-occupied investment
properties are more similar in risk to commercial real estate loans, and therefore, are underwritten by assessing
the property’s income potential and appraised value. In both cases, we underwrite the borrower’s financial
condition and evaluate his or her global cash flow position. Borrowers may be affected by numerous factors,
including job loss, illness, or other personal hardship. As part of our product mix, the Company offers both
portfolio and secondary market mortgages; portfolio loans generally are based on a 1-year, 3-year, 5-year, 7-
year, or 10-year adjustable rate mortgage; while 15-year or 30-year fixed-rate loans are generally sold to the
secondary market.

Construction. Typically, these loans have a construction period of one to two years and the interest is paid
monthly. Once the construction period terminates, some of these loans convert to a term loan, generally with a
maturity of one to ten years. This portion of our loan portfolio includes loans to small and midsized businesses
to construct owner-user properties, loans to developers of commercial real estate investment properties, and
residential developments. This type of loan is also made to individual clients for construction of single-family
homes in our market area. An independent appraisal is used to determine the value of the collateral and confirm
that the ratio of the loan principal to the value of the collateral will not exceed policies of the Company. As the
construction project progresses, loan proceeds are requested by the borrower to complete phases of construction
and funding is only disbursed after the project has been inspected by a third-party inspector or experienced
construction lender. Risks associated with construction loans include fluctuations in the value of real estate,
project completion risk, and changes in market trends. The ability of the construction loan borrower to finance
the loan or sell the property upon completion of the project is another risk factor that also may be affected by
changes in market trends since the initial funding of the loan.

(continued)
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Commercial Loans. The Company offers a wide range of commercial loans, including business term loans,
equipment financing, lines of credit, and U.S. Small Business Administration (SBA) loans (including Paycheck
Protection Program loans) to small and midsized businesses. Small-to-medium sized businesses, retail, and
professional establishments, make up our target market for commercial loans. Our Relationship Managers primarily
underwrite these loans based on the borrower’s ability to service the loan from cash flow. Lines of credit and loans
secured by accounts receivable and/or inventory are monitored periodically by our staff. Loans secured by “all
business assets,” or a “blanket lien” are typically only made to highly qualified borrowers due to the nonspecific
nature of the collateral and do not require a formal valuation of the business collateral. When commercial loans are
secured by specifically identified collateral, then the valuation of the collateral is generally supported by an appraisal,
purchase order, or third-party physical inspection. Personal guarantees of the principals of business borrowers are
usually required. Equipment loans generally have a term of five years or less and may have a fixed or variable rate;
we use conservative margins when pricing these loans. Working capital loans generally do not exceed one year and
typically, they are secured by accounts receivable, inventory, and personal guarantees of the principals of the
business. The Company currently offers SBA 504 and SBA 7A loans. SBA 504 loans provide financing for major
fixed assets such as real estate and equipment while SBA 7A loans are generally used to establish a new business or
assist in the acquisition, operation, or expansion of an existing business. With both SBA loan programs, there are
set eligibility requirements and underwriting standards outlined by SBA that can change as the government alters its
fiscal policy. Significant factors affecting a commercial borrower’s creditworthiness include the quality of
management and the ability both to evaluate changes in the supply and demand characteristics affecting the business’
markets for products and services and to respond effectively to such changes. These loans may be made unsecured
or secured, but most are made on a secured basis. Risks associated with our commercial loan portfolio include local,
regional, and national market conditions. Other factors of risk could include changes in the borrower’s management
and fluctuations in collateral value. Additionally, there may be refinancing risk if a commercial loan includes a
balloon payment which must be refinanced or paid off at loan maturity. In reference to our risk management process,
our commercial loan portfolio presents a higher risk profile than our consumer real estate and consumer loan
portfolios. Therefore, we require that all loans to businesses must have a clearly stated and reasonable payment plan
to allow for timely retirement of debt, unless secured by liquid collateral or as otherwise justified.

Consumer and Other Loans. These loans are made for various consumer purposes, such as the financing of
automobiles, boats, and recreational vehicles. The payment structure of these loans is normally on an installment
basis. The risk associated with this category of loans stems from the reduced collateral value for a defaulted loan; it
may not provide an adequate source of repayment of the principal. The underwriting on these loans is primarily
based on the borrower’s financial condition. Therefore, both secured and unsecured consumer loans subject the
Company to risk when the borrower’s financial condition declines or deteriorates. Based upon our current trend in
consumer loans, management does not anticipate consumer loans will become a substantial component of our loan
portfolio at any time in the foreseeable future. Consumer loans are made at fixed and variable interest rates and are
based on the appropriate amortization for the asset and purpose.

(continued)
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An analysis of the change in the allowance for loan losses follows:

Real Estate Mortgage Loans

Residential Consumer
and Home Commercial and Other Unallocated
(in thousands) Commercial Equity  Construction Loans Loans Reserve Total
Year Ended December 31, 2021
Beginning balance................... $ 1,500 $ 1,827 $ 539 $ 1,592 § 75 $ 559 $ 6,092
Provision (credit) for loan
LOSSES...ecevieerieeieeeiie e 262 322 318 (490) 43 (559) (104)
Net charge-offs.......c.cccevvenenns - (10) - 23 27 - (14)
Ending balance ........................ $ 1,762 § 2,139 § 857 $ 1,125 § 91 § -8 5974
At December 31, 2021
Individually evaluated for
impairment:
Recorded investment ............... $ -3 -3 -3 -3 -3 -3 -
Balance in allowance for loan
1OSSES....voveeeeeeeveeeeeeeeeieernan $ -3 - $ -$ -3 -3 -3 -
Collectively evaluated for
impairment:
Recorded investment ............... $ 156,306 $ 183,536 § 71,164 $ 78,584 § 7283 § - $496,873
Balance in allowance for loan
10SSES..ccuvieeereeiieereeciee e $ 1,762 § 2,139 § 857 $ 1,125 § 91 § - $ 5974
Year Ended December 31, 2020
Beginning balance ................... $ 1,046 $ 1,573 $ 415 $ 1,284 $ 9% $ -$ 4414
Provision for loan losses.......... 454 302 124 1,379 32 559 2,850
Net charge-offs.......ccceveennenee. - (48) - (1,071) (53) - (1,172)
Ending balance ........................ $ 1,500 $ 1,827 $ 539 $ 1,592 § 75 $ 559 $ 6,092
At December 31, 2020
Individually evaluated for
impairment:
Recorded investment ............... $ -$ 666 $ -$ 585 $ -3 - $ 1,251
Balance in allowance for loan
L1OSSES..veuvevirereeereereeeeeeene $ -8 -3 -8 179 $ -3 -8 179
Collectively evaluated for
impairment:
Recorded investment ............... $ 133473 $ 157454 § 44,466 $ 140,957 $ 6,312 $ - $482,662
Balance in allowance for loan
1OSSES..vivierieieciiereere e $ 1,500 § 1,827 $ 539 $ 1,413 § 75 8 559 § 5913
(continued)
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The following summarizes the loan credit quality:

Real Estate Mortgage Loans

Residential Consumer
and Home Commercial and Other
(in thousands) Commercial Equity Construction Loans Loans Total
At December 31, 2021
Grade:
Pass ..ccocooeeeeeeeeeeeeee $ 153,404 $§ 181,770 $ 71,051 $ 78,462 $ 7,233 '$ 491,920
Special mention.............. 2,902 1,766 113 118 50 4,949
Substandard.................... - - - 4 - 4
Doubtful ..........ccveenneene. - - - - - -
LOSS . iiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee, - - - - - -
Total......coovveevieiieerene, $§ 156,306 $§ 183,536 $ 71,164 $ 78,584 $ 7,283 § 496,873
At December 31, 2020
Grade:
Pass ..ccocooeeeeeeieieeee $ 130,846 $ 156,985 $ 43,622 $ 140,370 $ 6,278 $ 478,101
Special mention.............. 2,627 469 844 405 34 4,379
Substandard.................... - 666 - 767 - 1,433
Doubtful .........cccvvenneenee. - - - - - -
LOSS i, - - - - - -
Total ......covvveiieiieeie $§ 133473 $§ 158,120 $ 44466 $ 141,542 § 6,312 § 483913

The Company categorizes loans into risk categories based on relevant information about the ability of borrowers to service
their debt such as: current financial information, historical payment experience, credit documentation, public information,
and current economic trends, among other factors.

The Company analyzes loans individually by classifying the loans as to credit risk. Loans classified as substandard or special
mention are reviewed quarterly by the Company for further deterioration or improvement to determine if they are
appropriately classified and whether there is any impairment. All loans are graded upon initial issuance. Further, construction
and nonowner-occupied commercial real estate loans and commercial relationships in excess of $1 million are reviewed at
least annually. The Company determines the appropriate loan grade during the renewal process and reevaluates the loan grade
in situations when a loan becomes past due.

Loans excluded from the review process above are generally classified as pass credits until: (a) they become past due; (b)
management becomes aware of deterioration in the credit worthiness of the borrower; or (c) the client contacts the Company
for a modification. In these circumstances, the loan is specifically evaluated for potential classification as to special mention,
substandard or even charged-off. The Company uses the following definitions for risk ratings:

Pass — A Pass loan’s primary source of loan repayment is satisfactory, with secondary sources very likely to be
realized if necessary.

Special Mention — A Special Mention loan has potential weaknesses that deserve management’s close attention. If
left uncorrected, these potential weaknesses may result in the deterioration of the repayment prospects for the asset
or the Company’s credit position at some future date. Special Mention loans are not adversely classified and do not
expose an institution to sufficient risk to warrant adverse classification.

(continued)
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Substandard — A Substandard loan is inadequately protected by the current sound worth and paying capacity of the
obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any. Loans so classified must have a well-defined weakness or weaknesses
that jeopardize the liquidation of the debt. They are characterized by the distinct possibility that the Company will
sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected.
Doubtful — A loan classified Doubtful has all the weaknesses inherent in one classified Substandard with the added
characteristics that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of currently existing facts,
conditions, and values, highly questionable and improbable.
Loss — A loan classified Loss is considered uncollectible and of such little value that continuance as a bankable asset
is not warranted. This classification does not necessarily preclude the potential for recovery, but rather signifies it is
no longer practical to defer writing off the asset.
At December 31, 2021, there were five loans over thirty days past due and accruing, no loans past due ninety days
or more but still accruing and no loans on nonaccrual status. Age analysis of past-due loans at December 31, 2021
and 2020 is as follows:
Accruing Loans
Greater
30-59 60-89 Than 90 Total
Days Days Days Past Nonaccrual Total
(in thousands) Past Due Past Due PastDue Due Current Loans Loans
At December 31, 2021:
Real estate mortgage loans:
Commercial .......cccooveveeeveeeeennn. $ - $ - $ -3 - $156,306 $ - $156,306
Residential and home equity......... 710 - - 710 182,826 - 183,536
Construction..........cceveeeeeveeeeeiveeen. - - - - 71,164 - 71,164
Commercial loans...........cccoeeeuvveeeen.. 411 - - 411 78,173 - 78,584
Consumer and other loans................. - - - - 7,283 - 7,283
Total..cveieieicereeee $§ 1,121 % -8 - § 1,121 $495,752 § - $496,873
At December 31, 2020:
Real estate mortgage loans:
Commercial «.....eeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeennn. $ - 3 - $ -3 - $133473 $ - $133,473
Residential and home equity......... 536 - - 536 156,918 666 158,120
ConstructioN.........coeevvveeeeeeeeennnnne. 195 - - 195 44271 - 44,466
Commercial loans.............coeeuvvveenn.n. - - - - 140,957 585 141,542
Consumer and other loans................. - - - - 6,312 - 6,312
Total...cooeeneieicireceee, $ 731§ - 8 -3 731 $481,931 $ 1,251 $483,913
(continued)
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The following summarizes the amount of impaired loans at December 31, 2021 and 2020:

With No Related
Allowance Recorded With an Allowance Recorded Total
Unpaid Unpaid Unpaid
Contractual Contractual Contractual
Recorded Principal Recorded Principal Related Recorded Principal Related
(in thousands) Investment Balance Investment Balance Allowance Investment Balance Allowance
At December 31, 2021
Consumer and other
10ans ......cccveveevennen. $ 49 49 -8 -$ -8 49 4 -
Total ..cceeeeereeeeireeenes $ 49 43 -8 -$ -8 49 43 -
At December 31, 2020
Residential and home
CqUILY e $ 666 $ 666 $ -8 -$ -8 666 $ 666 $ -
Commercial loans....... - - 585 585 179 585 585 179
Total ....cooovverieerenen. $ 666 $ 666 $ 585 $ 585 $ 179 $ 1,251 $ 1,251 $ 179

The average net investment in impaired loans and interest income recognized and received on impaired loans by loan class
is as follows:

Average Interest Interest
Recorded Income Income
(in thousands) Investment Recognized Received
Year Ended December 31, 2021
Residential and home eqUIty ..........ccccueerereieeeeeeeeeeeee e $ 302 - S -
(070) 4511015 (o3 - | (SRR 174 - -
TOTAL .ttt et $ 476 $ - 8 -
(in thousands)
Year Ended December 31, 2020
Commercial T€al ESTALE ........c.ecovievieeieeieceieeeeeee et $ 241 § 12 $ 11
Residential and home equity .........cccceereeierienieniecec e 865 - -
COMMETCIAL ...oeiiiiiiiiiiiiic e e e 1,084 17 17
Consumer and Other I0ANS ............ocveeeieeeieeeee et 13 - -
TOAL .ot e $ 2,203 § 29 § 28

There were no collateral dependent impaired loans measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis at December 31, 2021 or
2020.

(continued)
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The restructuring of a loan constitutes a troubled debt restructuring (“TDR”) if the creditor grants a concession to the debtor
that it would not otherwise consider in the normal course of business. A concession may include an extension of repayment
terms which would not normally be granted, a reduction in interest rate or the forgiveness of principal and/or accrued interest.
All TDRs are evaluated individually for impairment on a quarterly basis as part of the allowance for loan losses
calculation. During the period of national emergency related to the COVID-19 pandemic, the banking regulatory agencies
have confirmed with FASB that certain shorter-term loan modifications made in response to the pandemic's effects on
borrowers should not be considered to be TDRs.

As shown in the table below, the Company entered into one new TDR during the year ended December 31, 2021 and no new
TDRs during the year ended December 31, 2020.

Year Ended December 31, 2021 Year Ended December 31, 2020
Pre- Post- Current Pre- Post- Current
Modification Modification Modification Modification Modification Modification
Number Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding Number Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding
of Recorded Recorded Recorded of Recorded Recorded Recorded

Contracts Investment Investment Investment Contracts Investment Investment Investment

(in thousands)

Troubled Debt
Restructurings:
Modified interest rate
CONSUMET ......oevverrnnene 1$ 48 48 4 -8 -3 -$ -
Total .o, 13 48 49 4 -8 -3 -3 -

The TDR entered into during the year ended December 31, 2021 did subsequently default. At December 31, 2021, the
Company had one $4,000 loan identified as a TDR.

The Company grants the majority of its loans to borrowers throughout Leon County and Polk County, Florida. Although the
Company has a diversified loan portfolio, a significant portion of its borrowers’ ability to honor their contracts is dependent
upon the economy of this area. The Company does not have any significant concentrations to any one industry or client.

“4) Premises and Equipment

A summary of premises and equipment follows:

At December 31,
2021 2020

(in thousands)
Land.....coooooiiiicceceee e $ 1,704  $ 1,704
BUildings .....c.ceoveeeieiieiieeieeee e 5,085 5,036
Leasehold improvements............cccecevevvereenieeceeneennnnns 1,551 1,503
Furniture, fixtures and equipment............cccccecueeeenne 2,099 1,911
Computer and SOftWare...........ccoeveeveereeeniereeeee 3,197 3,106

Total, at COSt....oiiirieeieiiieeeeeee e 13,636 13,260
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization ....... (5,674) (5,012)

Premises and equipment, N€t............cecvvveereervenennns $ 7,962 $ 8,248

(continued)
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Right of use assets and lease liabilities are disclosed as separate line items in the consolidated balance sheets and are valued
based on the present value of the future minimum lease payments at the commencement date. As our lease does not provide
an implicit rate, we used our incremental borrowing rate based on the information available at the adoption date in determining
the present value of future payments. Lease expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company's operating lease obligations are for the Company's office facilities located at its Timberlane Road, Tallahassee,
Florida location. The term of the lease is 15 years, with four options to renew for five years each. The lease is a fully net
lease, with the Company separately paying real and personal property taxes, all special and third-party assessments, common
area maintenance charges, maintenance costs and insurance expenses.

The components of lease expense and other lease information as of and during the year ended December 31, 2021 are as
follows:

At December 31,

2021 2020
(in thousands)
Operating 1€aSE COSt........viviviiiieririietieieietee ettt $ 319§ 319
Cash paid for amount included in the measurement of lease
liabilities operating cash flows from operating leases ...........cccccceveeeenee. $ 294§ 294
(dollars in thousands) 2021 2020
Operating lease right Of USE @SSELS .........cevveveivieeeriereeiere et $ 3258  $ 3,466
Operating lease Habilities .........cccceevvieviieiiieierieceee e 3,397 3,580
Weighted average remaining lease term - operating lease (in years)....... 12.6 13.6
Weighted average diSCOUNt Tate........c.eccververeereeniieieeieseesie e eeeeeeeiens 3.17% 3.17%

Future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable leases as of December 31, 2021, reconciled to our operating lease
liability presented on the consolidated balance sheet are as follows:

At December 31,
(in thousands) 2021
2022 e $ 294
2023 e 294
2024 <. 306
2025 e 323
2026 e 323
Thereafter .......ooovvvvveeeiiiieeeeeeeeeee e 2,615
Total future minimum lease payments................ 4,155
LSS INEEIEST...evieiieiieieiie et (758)
TOtAL...oieieeie e $ 3,397

(continued)
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The aggregate amount of time deposits with a minimum denomination greater than $250,000 was approximately $22.8 million
and $25.6 million at December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

A schedule of maturities for all time deposits at December 31, 2021 is as follows:

(in thousands)

Year Ending December 31, Amount
2022 e $ 41,209
2023 e 7,345
2024 ..o 498
2025 o 364
2039 e 416
TOtAL .o $ 49,832

(6) Other Borrowings

The Company has pledged collateral to the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta (“FHLB”) for future advances which will be
collateralized by a blanket lien on qualifying residential real estate, commercial real estate, home equity lines of credit and
multi-family loans. The Company may borrow up to $78.8 million as of December 31, 2021 from the FHLB. There were no
advances outstanding at December 31, 2021 or 2020. The Company also has available credit of $47.0 million in lines of credit
with correspondent banks. All draws under these lines are subject to approval by the correspondent bank. The Company also
maintains a $15.0 million revolving line of credit with a local bank. The Company has pledged all of the Bank's common
stock as collateral for the revolving line of credit which matures in August, 2025 and bears interest at prime. There was
an outstanding balance of $3.575 million under the revolving line of credit at December 31, 2021 and interest expense paid
under this line totaled $58,000 in 2021. The Company had no borrowings under the revolving line of credit during 2020.

7 Income Taxes

The components of the income taxes are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2021 2020
Current:
Federal ......ooooveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee $ 2,109 $ 1,464
StAte .evvevieeie e 356 271
Total current ...........ocoeevveeeeeeeeeecieeeeeeenen. 2,465 1,735
Deferred:
Federal ......ccooeovvviiiiieeieeeceeeee 41 (345)
StALE ovveeeeeeeeeeeeee e 11 (95)
Total deferred ........cceevevvevrieiiennen. 52 (440)
Total income taxes........ccceeveunn.... $ 2,517 $ 1,295

(continued)
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The reasons for the difference between the statutory Federal income tax rate and the effective tax rates are summarized as
follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020
% of % of
Pretax Pretax
Amount Earnings Amount Earnings
(dollars in thousands)
Income taxes at statutory rate .............ccoceeveeeenen. $ 2,282 21.0% $ 1,208 21.0%
Increase (decrease) resulting from:
State taxes, net of federal tax benefit............... 291 2.7 139 24
Tax-exempt INCOME.......ccceerreerrrrrerererreereaenenns (75) 0.7) (72) (1.3)
Other nondeductible expenses............ceeevennenn. 19 0.2 20 0.4
Total..oieiee e $ 2,517 23.2% $ 1,295 22.5%

Tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to the deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

At December 31,
2021 2020
(in thousands)
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for 10an LOSSES ..........covvevevvviiiieiieeeeeeeeeeee e $ 1,514 $ 1,544
Organizational and Start-up COStS........ccevvververeereercierierireeenns 11 21
Stock-based COMPENSAtION ..........cceevereiereeereeiieriieieeve e 105 79
Deferred compensation .............ccoeceeveerieeriiecieneenieeee e 134 85
Unrealized losses on securities available for sale ................... 24 -
(011 T (PR SUSRRRUROt 54 55
Deferred tax aSSELS.....cciiiieiuriiiiiee e 1,842 1,784
Deferred tax liabilities:
Prepaid EXPEenses .....cccevueeuerieiieniiesieee e (143) 91)
Deferred 10an COSES ...ouviviiiiniieiiieieeie e (567) (605)
Premises and eqUIPMEnt..........cccuveevveeecieeriieenieenieeneeesveeneneens (289) 217)
Unrealized gain on debt securities available for sale............... - (477)
Deferred tax liabilities ........coevvieeeiieirieiiciecie e (999) (1,390)
Net deferred tax aSSEt ......oovoveeveeereeeeeerieeeeereeee et $ 843 § 394

The Company files consolidated income tax returns in the U.S. federal jurisdiction and the State of Florida. The Company is
no longer subject to U.S. federal, or state and local income tax examinations by taxing authorities for years before 2018.

(continued)
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8 Off-Balance Sheet Financial Instruments

The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet the
financing needs of its clients. These financial instruments are commitments to extend credit, construction loans in process,
unused lines of credit, financial and performance standby letters of credit, and guaranteed accounts and may involve, to
varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the consolidated balance
sheets. The contract amounts of these instruments reflect the extent of involvement the Company has in these consolidated
financial instruments.

The Company’s exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instrument for
available lines of credit, construction loans in process and standby letters of credit is represented by the contractual amount
of those instruments. The Company uses the same credit policies in making commitments as it does for on-balance sheet
instruments.

Commitments to extend credit, construction loans in process and unused lines of credit are agreements to lend to a client as
long as there is no violation of any condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates
or other termination clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since some of the commitments are expected to expire without
being drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Company
evaluates each client’s credit worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if deemed necessary by
the Company upon extension of credit, is based on management’s credit evaluation of the counterparty. Standby letters of
credit are written conditional commitments issued by the Company to guarantee the performance of a client to a third party.
These letters of credit are primarily issued to support third-party borrowing arrangements and generally have expiration dates
within one year of issuance. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that involved in
extending loans to clients. In the event the client does not perform in accordance with the terms of the agreement with the
third party, we would be required to fund the commitment. The maximum potential amount of future payments we could be
required to make is represented by the contractual amount of the commitment. If the commitment is funded, we would be
entitled to seek recovery from the client. Some of the Company’s standby letters of credit are secured by collateral and those
secured letters of credit totaled $484,000 at December 31, 2021.

Guaranteed accounts are irrevocable standby letters of credit issued by us to guarantee a client’s credit line with our third-
party credit card company, First Arkansas Bank & Trust. As a part of this agreement, we are responsible for the established
credit limit on certain accounts plus 10%. The maximum potential amount of future payments we could be required to make
is represented by the dollar amount disclosed in the table below.

Standby letters of credit and commitments to extend credit typically result in loans with a market interest rate when funded.

A summary of the contractual amounts of the Company’s financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk at December 31,
2021 is as follows:

At December 31, 2021
(in thousands)
Commitments to extend credit...........coeeuvvveeeennn. $ 5,400
Construction 10ans in process ...........ccecvverveeenennen. 63,552
Unused lines of credit ......cooevveveeiviieeiiiiieeineee. 72,886
Standby financial letters of credit ..............c....... 2,938
Standby performance letters of credit.................. 100
Guaranteed aCCOUNTS..........ooevvieieeieieiiieeeeiieeenn, 1,367
Total off-balance sheet instruments..................... $ 146,243

(continued)

25



PRIME MERIDIAN HOLDING COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, Continued
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2015 Stock Incentive Compensation Plan

The 2015 Stock Incentive Compensation Plan (the “2015 Plan) was approved by Shareholders at the Company’s annual
meeting of shareholders on May 20, 2015, and permits the Company to grants its key employees and directors stock options,
stock appreciation rights, performance shares, and phantom stock. Under the 2015 Plan, the number of shares which may be
issued is 500,000, but in no instance more than 15% of the issued and outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock.
As of December 31, 2021, 319,457 stock options and 11,516 restricted stock awards have been granted under the 2015
Plan. Taking into account the 50,650 stock options that have been forfeited, 189,034 options are available for grant at
December 31, 2021.

A summary of the activity in the Company’s 2015 Plan is as follows:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Average Remaining  Aggregate
Number of  Exercise = Contractual Intrinsic

Options Price Term Value
Outstanding at December 31, 2019....................... 272,267 $ 19.80
Options granted.........c.eeeveveereereeniieiieeeeeesieenens 15,000 20.05
Options forfeited.........oovvviriienieniiicieeeeieee (15,210) 20.05
Outstanding at December 31, 2020....................... 272,057 19.80
Options granted..........ceeevereeereereeneeieeeeneesieenens 18,000 27.12
Options eXerciSed ........ccvvvverveereerierierierreesieenens (150) 20.09
Options forfeited.........oovvrereriienienieeeeeeeeee (21,250) 20.58
Outstanding at December 31, 2021...........c.coc..... 268,657 $ 20.23 6.0 $ 618,000
Exercisable at December 31, 2021 ..........cccocvveee. 159,677 $ 19.59 54 § 418,000

The fair value of shares vested and recognized as compensation expense was $156,000 and $162,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The Company recognized an income tax benefit of $19,000 and $21,000 with
respect to share-based compensation in 2021 and 2020, respectively. At December 31, 2021, there was $317,000 of total
unrecognized compensation expense related to non-vested share-based compensation arrangements granted under the 2015
Plan. The cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.7 years.

The fair value of each option granted was estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with
the following assumptions:

Year ended December 31,

2021 2020
Weighted average risk-free interest rate..........c..coceeuenee. 1.15-1.30% 1.46%
Expected dividend yield.........ccocoeoirreiinneinrceeeene 0.49-0.62% 0.60%
Expected stock volatility ........ccceoeroiiienienieieece 22.94-30.69% 14.69%
Expected life in years ........ccceveerieieeieereeecceeeeee 6.5 6.5
Per share fair value of options issued during year........... $4.88-$8.87 $ 3.26

The Company used the guidance in Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 107 to determine the estimated life of options issued.
Expected volatility is based on volatility of similar companies’ common stock. The risk-free rate for periods within the
contractual life of the option is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. The dividend yield is
based on the Company’s history and expectation of dividend payouts.

(continued)
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Directors' Plan

The Directors’ Plan permits the Company’s and the Bank’s directors to elect to receive any compensation to be paid to them
in shares of the Company’s common stock. Pursuant to the Directors’ Plan, each director is permitted to make an election to
receive shares of stock instead of cash. To encourage directors to elect to receive stock, the Directors’ Plan provides that if a
director elects to receive stock, he or she will receive in common stock 110% of the amount of cash fees set by the Board or
the Compensation Committee. The value of stock to be awarded pursuant to the Directors’ Plan will be the closing price of a
share of common stock as traded on the OTCQX or a price set by the Board or its Compensation Committee, acting in good
faith, but in no case less than fair market value. In 2021 and 2020, the Board used the greater of quarter-end book value and
quarter-end volume weighted average market price to determine what the fair market value of Prime Meridian common stock
was for purposes of the Directors’ Plan. The maximum number of remaining shares to be issued pursuant to the Directors’
Plan is limited to 41,364 shares, which is approximately 1.3% of the total shares outstanding as of the record date. In 2021 and
2020, our directors received 5,344 and 4,932 shares of common stock, respectively, in lieu of cash, under the Directors’
Plan. The Company recognized expense of $111,000 and $93,000 during the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, with
respect to the Director’s Plan. As of December 31, 2021, there were 41,364 shares remaining available for grant.

Restricted Stock

As part of the bonus incentive earned for the Company's performance in 2020, the Company issued an additional
4,081 restricted common stock shares to its CEO in the first quarter of 2021, to accompany the 7,435 restricted common
stocks shares issued in 2019 and 2020. Restricted stocks granted are vested equally over the span of 3 years. Stockholders of
unvested restricted stock have the right to vote and the right to receive dividends declared on common stock, if any. A
summary of restricted stock transaction follows:

Wtd-Avg Unvested
Grant Date Shares

Number of Fair Value per Grant Date

Shares Share Fair Value
Restricted stock granted in 2019 .........ccoooveoveeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 3,600 $ 1852 $ 22,000
Restricted stock granted in 2020 ...........cccvveeeieriienieeiieeee e 3,835 20.40 52,000
Restricted granted in 2021 .........cooieiirieiieiieeee e 4,081 18.04 74,000
Restricted stock vested in 2020 ..........ccveeviiievieniieieeeeceereeee e, (3,678) (19.49) -
Non-vested restricted stock outstanding at December 31, 2021......... 7,838 $ 18.88 $ 148,000

During the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Company recognized $71,000 and $46,000, respectively, as
expense and had $83,000 in unrecognized expense at December 31, 2021 to be recognized over a weighted-average period
of 1.7 years.

(10) Employee Benefit Plans

The Company sponsors a 401(k)-profit sharing plan available to all employees electing to participate after meeting certain
length-of-service requirements. The Company’s contributions to the profit-sharing plan are discretionary and determined
annually. Contribution expense related to the plans for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 were $248,000 and
$256,000, respectively.

The Company has established non-qualified account balance deferred compensation plans to provide retirement benefits for
certain officers of the Company. The Company is recognizing the expense of these plans as services are rendered using a
discount rate of four percent and a retirement age of sixty-five. The Company’s expense in connection with these plans was
$193,000 and $160,000 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The accrued liability related to these
agreements was $527,000 and $333,000 at December 31, 2021and 2020, respectively. Such amounts are included in other
liabilities in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

(continued)
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an Related Party Transactions

The Company enters into transactions during the ordinary course of business with officers and directors of the Company and
entities in which they hold a significant financial interest. The following table summarizes these transactions:

Year Ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2021 2020
Loans:
Beginning balance...............cccoeuen... $ 6,606 $ 7,726
Originated during the year ................ 4,284 421
Principal repayments.............c........... (2,422) (1,541)
Ending balance..........c.cccceveuevennnnn.. $ 8,468 $ 6,606
Deposits at year-end........................ $ 9,717 § 7,524

In addition, the Company purchases various insurance policies through a company that employs the spouse of Director Jones.
The premiums paid totaled $1.4 million and $1.1 million in 2021 and 2020, respectively, and included health insurance
premiums for employees. Mr. Jones’ interest in such premiums was $5,734.

(12) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The approximate carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Company’s financial instruments are as follows:

At December 31, 2021 At December 31, 2020

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
(in thousands) Level Amount Value Amount Value
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents ......................... 1 $§ 233473 $§ 233473 $ 68,985 §$ 68,985
Debt securities available for sale ............... 2 73,763 73,763 61,879 61,879
Loans held for sale...........ccooeveveveneeeennnnn... 3 11,768 11,964 13,593 13,814
L0ans, NEt .......ccveeeeeeeeeeee e 3 490,198 495,209 476,661 487,652
Federal Home Loan Bank stock ................ 3 366 366 493 493
Accrued interest receivable..............co........ 3 1,505 1,505 1,960 1,960
Bank owned life insurance..............co.o...... 3 16,153 16,153 10,685 10,685
Derivative contract assets ................cuu...... 3 630 630 163 163
Financial liabilities-
DEPOSItS ..cvveereiierieieeieee e 3 762,942 763,147 580,592 581,073
Other Borrowings ..........ccceecvevveseveceennennens 3 3,575 3,575 - -
Derivative contract liabilities..................... 2 630 630 163 163
Off-Balance Sheet financial instruments.............. 3 - - - -
(continued)
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(13) Dividend Restrictions

The Holding Company is limited in the amount of cash dividends it may declare and pay by the amount of capital is has
retained and the amount of dividends it can receive from the Bank. The Bank is limited in the amount of cash dividends that
may be paid. The amount of cash dividends that may be paid is based on the Bank’s net earnings of the current year combined
with the Bank’s retained earnings of the preceding two years, as defined by state banking regulations. However, for any
dividend declaration, the Bank must consider additional factors such as the amount of current period net earnings, liquidity,
asset quality, capital adequacy and economic conditions. It is likely that these factors would further limit the amount of
dividends which the Bank could declare. In addition, bank regulators have the authority to prohibit banks from paying
dividends if they deem such payment to be an unsafe or unsound practice.

In January 2022, the Board of Directors declared an annual dividend of $0.18 per share of common stock payable on March
1, 2022 to shareholders of record as of February 10, 2022.

(14)  Regulatory Matters

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the banking agencies. Failure to meet
minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that,
if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company’s and the Bank’s financial statements. Under capital
adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital
guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Bank’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated
under regulatory accounting practices. The Bank’s capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments
by the regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors.

The Bank is subject to the Basel III capital level threshold requirements under the Prompt Corrective Action regulations
which phased in full compliance over a multi-year schedule. These regulations were designed to ensure that banks maintain
strong capital positions even in the event of severe economic downturns or unforeseen losses.

The Bank is subject to the capital conservation buffer rules which place limitations on distributions, including dividend
payments, and certain discretionary bonus payments to executive officers. In order to avoid these limitations, a bank must
hold a capital conservation buffer above its minimum risk-based capital requirements. As of December 31, 2021, and 2020,
the Bank’s capital conservation buffer exceeded the minimum requirement of 2.50%.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain minimum amounts
and percentage (set forth in the table below) of total and Tier 1 capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets
(as defined) and of Tier 1 capital (as defined) to average assets (as defined). Management believes, as of December 31, 2021,
that the Bank meets all capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject.

(continued)
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As of December 31, 2021, the Bank is well-capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be
categorized as adequately capitalized, the Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based Tier 1 risk-based, and Tier 1 leverage

percentages as set forth in the table. There are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have
changed the bank’s category. The Bank’s actual capital amounts and percentages are also presented in the table:

For Well
For Capital Capitalized
Actual Adequacy Purposes Purposes
(dollars in thousands) Amount Percentage Amount Percentage Amount Percentage
As of December 31, 2021
Tier 1 Leverage ratio to Average Assets.......... $ 70,548 8.53% $ 33,071 4.00% $ 41,338 5.00%
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital to Risk-

Weighted ASSEtS........cooeverererenereeieieienn 70,548 13.45 23,596 4.50 34,083 6.50
Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets........... 70,548 13.45 31,461 6.00 41,948 8.00
Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets............ 76,522 14.59 41,948 8.00 52,435 10.00
As of December 31, 2020:

Tier 1 Leverage ratio to Average Assets.......... $ 57,800 9.09% $ 25,421 4.00% $ 31,776 5.00%
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital to Risk-

Weighted ASSEtS........ccceverereeineeieieeeene 57,800 13.29 19,575 4.50 28,275 6.50
Tier 1 Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets........... 57,800 13.29 26,100 6.00 34,799 8.00
Total Capital to Risk-Weighted Assets............ 63,245 14.54 34,799 8.00 43,499 10.00

(15)  Legal Contingencies

Various legal claims arise from time to time in the normal course of business which, in the opinion of management, will not
have a material effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements. As of December 31, 2021, there is no pending or
threatened litigation of which management is aware.

(16) Earnings Per Share

Earnings per share (“EPS”) has been computed on the basis of the weighted-average number of shares of common stock
outstanding. Outstanding stock options are considered dilutive securities for purposes of calculating diluted EPS which was
computed using the treasury stock method:

2021 2020
Weighted- Per Weighted- Per
Average Share Average Share

(dollars in thousands, except per share amounts) Earnings Shares Amount Earnings Shares  Amount
Year Ended December 31,
Basic EPS:

Net €arnings ......ccevveeeereeeereeieeeieieieeeseenens $ 8347 3,126,547 $ 2,67 $ 4458 3,134,124 § 142
Effect of dilutive securities-incremental shares

from assumed conversion of options ................ 15,935 -

Diluted EPS:

Net €arnings .......coceveveeeereeeneeieeeeeeeeneas $ 8347 3,142482 $§ 266 $§ 4458 3,134,124 § 142

(continued)
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a7 Derivatives

The Company has entered into interest rate swaps in order to provide commercial real estate loan clients the ability to swap
from variable to fixed interest rates. Under these agreements, the Company enters into a variable rate loan with a client at a
specified index (Wall Street Journal Prime Lending Rate) in addition to a borrower swap agreement. This swap agreement
effectively converts the client’s variable rate loan into a fixed rate. The Company then enters into a matching swap agreement
with a third-party dealer counterparty in order to offset its exposure on the borrower swap. These interest rate swaps are
considered derivative financial instruments. These derivative instruments involve both credit and market risk. The notional
amounts are amounts on which calculations, payments, and the value of the derivatives are based. Notional amounts do not
represent direct credit exposures. Direct credit exposure is limited to the net difference between the calculated amounts to be
received and paid, if any, over the life of the contract. Such differences, which represent the fair value of the derivative
instruments, is included in “other assets” and “other liabilities” on the Company’s consolidated balance sheets, and the net
change in each of these financial statement line items in the accompanying consolidated statements of cash flows. The
derivative transactions are considered instruments with no hedging designation, otherwise known as stand-alone derivatives.

At December 31,
2021 2020
dollars in thousands
Notional amount - interest rate swaps:

StaNd-al0NE AETIVALIVES ... .eeueeeeeeeeeeereeee e et et eeeeeeeeeeeeeee e e et e et eeeeeeeeseeesreeereeenesenenenes $ 20,606 $ 21,100
Weighted-average pay rate - interest rate SWapS «......c.ceeervereeereeieniesienieseesee e eeeeneeneens 3.69% 3.68%
Weighted-average receive rate - INterest rate SWaPS. .......coververerueeereeeeieieeeseeneeseeseennes 3.00% 3.00%
Weighted-average maturity (in years) - interest rate SWaps .......c.ccceveevveeveseereesveenenes 13.6 14.6
Net realized fair value adjustments:

Stand-alone derivatives - interest rate swaps (other assets) .........coccveeverceerverveniennenne. $ 630 § 163

Stand-alone derivatives - interest rate swaps (other liabilities)..........ccoccvreververeeennnnnen. $ (630) $ (163)

The Company is party to a collateral support agreement with its dealer counterparty. Such agreement requires that the
Company or the dealer counterparty to maintain collateral based on the fair values of derivative instruments. In the event of
default by a counterparty the non-defaulting counterparty would be entitled to the collateral. The Company does not require
borrower counterparties to post cash collateral based on the fair values of borrower interest rate swaps. In the event of default
of a borrower counterparty wherein the fair value of the derivative instrument is owed to the Company, the fair value is
collected through a real property foreclosure or liquidation.

(continued)
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(18)  Parent Company Only Financial Information

The Holding Company's unconsolidated financial information follows:

Condensend Balance Sheets December 31,
2021 2020

(in thousands)

Assets
SN ettt ettt ettt e e et e e eene s $ 114 $ 1,027
Investment in SUDSIAIAIY .........coieviiiiiiieiticie ettt b et te b esbeeeneeeees 70,475 59,201
OFNET ASSELS ...ttt e et e e et e et e e et e e e et e e e etae e e eetaeeeeeateeeeesaeeeeaneas 27 27

TOLAL @SSELS ..ot ettt e et e et e et e et e et e e et e et e e e e e e e eaee st eereeeaesenesaee $ 70,616 $ 60,255

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

Liabilities:
Other DOITOWINES ... ..vveeeeeeieeeeteeee ettt et e et ee ettt es et esese e eeneseneeasans $ 3,575 § -
ACCTUC TNEETEST ..ottt ettt e bttt esbeeneeeneeeas 10 -
TOtAl HADIIITIES ...evviieeeieeceeiie ettt et s e e e e et e e s enaeeesenaeeeean 3,585 -
StOCKNOIACTS' ©QUILY ...vveevvieeiiceieciieeieete ettt et re e be b e sbeessessaessaeeeas 67,031 60,255
Total liabilities and stockholders' €qUity..........covveiiieieieieeeeeeeeee e $ 70,616 $ 60,255
Condensed Statements of Earnings Year Ended December 31,
2021 2020
(in thousands)
REVEIIUES .....ovvtieietieeeteteee ettt ettt tes et eseteee et et e e st se et et ess s et ees s esese s esnas s s ese s esens $ - 8 -
514 0153 1 RSO URUPRRPPSRIPRRRNE (590) (505)
INCOME taX DENETIL.....eoiiiiiiii ettt 140 124
Loss before earnings of SUDSIAIAIY .........cccevieiieiiiiiiiieieeceee e (450) (381)
Net earnings of SUDSIAIATY ......eeeviiiiieeiieiieeeie ettt ee e e esbeeebeesbeesaee e 8,797 4,839
INEL CATIIIES ....veveeeeveeteeeteeteeeteeteeeete et eeete et easeteesesseteesesseseesesseteesesseseesessasessesseressesserea $ 8347 $ 4,458
(continued)
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(18) Parent Company Only Financial Information, Continued

Condensed Statements of Cash Flows Year Ended December 31,
(in thousands) 2021 2020
Cash flows from operating activities:
NEt BAININES ....cveveeeieeeeeeeeeee et ettt e eae et ae et e et eeteeneereenes $ 8,347 $ 4,458
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to net cash used in operating activities:
Equity in earnings of subSIdiary ..........coceeiieiiiiiie et (8,797) (4,839)
Stock issued as COMPENSALION .....c.veeeviiveeirieiiieieeeeeeee ettt reeeeeste e ebeereeeneseeeeas 111 93
Net change in other assets and other liabilities ............cceeevieviiiiineeniciieieceeeeees 11 (7)
Net cash used in operating activities........ccvevveeeereeriieriieieeeese e (328) (295)
Cash flows from investment activities-
Cash infusion t0 SUDSIAIATY ..........cceeviiriieriieiieieeeee ettt st (3,725) (6,000)
Net cash used in INVEStING ACIVILIES. .. .cccviiiriieeiieiiieeiie e ciee e eieeevee e e (3,725) (6,000)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from other BOITOWINGS .......c..ccviiiiiiiiieiiecteeieee ettt 3,575 -
Common StOCK TEHICMENL...........covieiieiieiertierieesieeiesee e steeteeeeereesreebeesseessesssesseennas - (1,217)
Cash dividend Paid .......c.occvirierieiieiieieeeeese et ees (438) (383)
Proceeds from stock options eXerciSed........c.evverierieiierieriieieeie e 3 27
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ..........cceevvevreereerviereerrieieeeeniens 3,140 (1,573)
Net deCrease N CASN .......icviiiieiecieeeee ettt beeseesaeeneeees 913) (7,868)
Cash at beginning of the year 1,027 8,895
Cash at end of year $ 114 $ 1,027

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information-
Noncash items:
Net change in accumulated other comprehensive income of subsidiary, net of
change in unrealized gain on debt securities available for sale, net of tax ........... $ (1,474) $ 1,201

Stock-based compensation expense of subsidiary..........c.coceeveveeviecrencienieneeneenen. $ 338§ 301

(19) Share Repurchase

On March 11, 2020, the Company's Board of Directors authorized a plan to repurchase up to $2,000,000 of the Company's
common stock, inclusive of commission and fees. As of December 31, 2020, the Company repurchased and retired a total of
82,784 shares at a weighted average price per share of $14.70 under this authorized repurchase plan. The total cost of shares
repurchased, inclusive of fees and commissions, was $1.2 million. The plan was suspended in late March and expired on June
30, 2020.

(continued)
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(20) Contingency

The COVID-19 pandemic has negatively impacted the global economy, disrupted global supply chains, and created volatility
and disruption in financial and equity markets. The extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic impacts our business, results of
operations, and financial condition, as well as our regulatory capital and liquidity ratios, in 2022 will depend on future
developments, the duration of the pandemic, the effectiveness and adoption of available vaccines, and the actions taken by
governmental authorities to slow the spread of the disease and mitigate its economic impact. We continue to monitor and
adhere to national guidelines and local safety ordinances to ensure the safety of our clients and employees.

The Company took action to prepare its employees, support its clients, and help its communities. The Company has
supported small business owners by making loans through the Small Business Administration Paycheck Protection Program
("PPP"). As of December 31, 2021, the Bank had originated 1,376 PPP loans for a total dollar amount of $128.3 million.
These loans are 100% guaranteed by the Small Business Administration (the "SBA"). At December 31, 2021, 242 loans
totaling $15.2 million were remaining on the Company's balance sheet, awaiting forgiveness.

At this time, it is not known how future variants and a potential rise in cases nationally may impact the economy, safety
protocols or consumer behavior. Management believes credit quality deterioration directly related to the pandemic could
materialize in the future. Since March of 2020, the Company has reported a peak of 70 requests for payment deferrals or
modifications on loans totaling $42.4 million. Approximately 91% of the requests have been for loans secured with real
estate. At December 31, 2021, all of the loans seeking payment deferrals and modifications have reverted back to their
premodification terms.

(continued)
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